
CITY OF CARMEL.BY-THE.SEA

HARRISON MEMORIAL LIBRARY BOARD
OF TRUSTEES

President Tara Twomey,
Timothy Blomgren, Richard Flower,
William Godwin, and Niels Reimers

All meetings are held in the City Council Chambers
East Side of Monte Verde Street
Between Ocean and 7rh Avenues

REGULAR MEETING
4t26t2017
9:00 a.m.

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

PUBLIG APPEARANGES Members of the. public are entltled to speak on matters of municipal concern not on the agenda duringPublic Appearances Each person's comments shall be limited to 3 minutes, or as otherwise established by the Trustees. Matters notappearing on Trustees' agenda will not receive actlon at tnis melting ort ,ry be referred to sta* for a future meeting. persons are notrequired to give their names, but it is helpful for speakers to state thJir names in order they may be identified in the minutes of themeeting.

ANNOUNCEMENTS

A. Announcements from president and Trustees

GONSENT AGENDA ltems on the consent agenda are routine in nature and do not require discussion or independent action.Members of the commissjon or the.public may askthat any items be considered individually for purposes of commission discussionand/ or for public comment. Unless that is done, one motion may be used to adopt all ,ecommlnoed actions.

1. Approval of the minutes for the 312212017 meeting.

ORDERS OF BUSINESS orders of Business are agenda items that require commission discussion, debate, direction to staff,and/or action.

2' Receive report from the Carmel Public Library Foundation regarding CPLF activities.

3' Approve a request from the carmel Public Library Foundation to hold the sterling circle event at theMain Library if the Park Branch Library is still closed for renovation. (p- 3)

4' Accept a proposalfrom the Carmel P^ublic Library Foundation to renovate the park Branch Library andmake a recommendation to the City Council. tp. i)
5' Approve proposed amendments to the Harrison Memorial Library Reference policy. (pp. 5 - 17)

6' Receive report from Local History Librarian Katie o'connell ouflining how the library,s oral Historyprogram will go fonruard.



7' Demonstration of the library's online databases by Head Reference Librarian Jean Chapin.

8. Receive the Librarian,s Report
A. review of monthly statistics
B. Park Branch Library renovation update

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

ADJOURNMENT

This agenda was posted-at city Hall located on Monte Verde Street between ocean and 7th Avenues, Harrison MemorialLibrary located on the NE corner of ocean Avenue and Lincoln street, and the carmel-bythe-sea post office tocated onSth Avenue between Dolores street and san carlos street, ,no in. city's webpag€ http://vwyw.ci.carmel.ca us/carmel/ on4/2012017 in accordance with the appricabre regal requirements.

Caro[na Lopez, Administrative Assistant

SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIAL RECEIVED AFTER THE POSTING OF THE AGENDA
Any supplemental writings or documents distributed to a majority of the Harrison Memorial Library Board of rrustees membersregarding any item on this agenda, received after the posting of ihe agenda will be available for public review in the Library andcommunity Activities Director's office located at the Park aranch Library at the NE corner of Mission street and sixth Avenue duringnormal business hours.

SPECIAL NOTICES TO PUBLIC
ln compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact thecity clerk's office at 831-620-2007 at least 48 hours prtr to the meeting to ensure that reasonable arrangements can be made toprovide accessibility to the meeting (28cFR 35.102-35.104 ADA Tifle il).

cHALLENGING DEclSloNS oF clrY ENTITIES The time limit within which to commence any lawsuit or legal challenge to any quasi-adjudicative decision made by the City of Carmel-by{he-Sea is governed by Section 1094.6 ottn" coo" of Civil procedure, unless ashorter limitation period is specified by any other provision, inclu-ding without limitation Government Code section 6s009 applicable tomany land use and zoning decisions, Government code section 66499.37 applicable to the Subdivision Map Act, and public ResourcesCode section 21167 applicable to the California Environmental Quality Act (cEeA). Under Section 1094.6, any lawsuit or legalchallenge to any quasi-adjudicative decision made by the city must be filed no later than the g0th day following the date on which suchdecision becomes final- Any lawsuit or legal challenge, wnich is not filed within that g0-day period, will be barred. Government codesection 65009 and 6649937' and Public Resources Code section 21167, impose shorter llmitations periods and requirements,including timely service in addition to filing. lf a person wishes to challenge the above actions in court, they may be limited to raisingonly those issues they or someone else raised at the meeting described in this notice, or in written correspondence delivered to the Cityof Carmel-by{he-Sea, at or prior to the meeting. ln addition, juoiciat challenge may be limited or barred where the interested party hasnot sought and exhausted all available administrative remedies.



MINUTES
HARRISON MEMORIAL LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES

CITY OF CARM EL-BY-THE.SEA

March 22,2017

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

The regular meeting of the Harrison Memorial Library Board of Trustees was held on the above date at9:00 a.m. President TWOMEY called the meeting to order.

PRESENT: BLOMGREN, FLOWER, GODWIN, TWoMEYABSENT: REIMERS
srAFF PRESENT: Janet Bombard, Library Director

Lori Aiello, Community Activities Assistant

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Members of the community joined the Board in the pledge of Allegiance.

PUBLIC APPEARANCES
CPLF Executive Director Alex Fallon thanked the board for attending the Donor Salute. Fallon announcedthat the Carmel Rotary gave CPLF a grant for the renovation of the Park Branch lobby. Chef John pisto,s
program was a great success. The annual fundraiser will be held May 17.

ANNOUNCEMENTS
No announcements.

CONSENT AGENDA
1. Approval of the minutes for the 2t2212017 meeting.

Board Member Blomgren moved to aoDrove the Minute,s of the Februarv 22, 2017 Reoular Meeting,secondedbyBoardMemberFlowerandcarriedb@vote:

AYES: BLOMGREN, FLOWER, GODWIN, TWOMEYNOES: NONE
ABSENT:REIMERS
ABSTAIN: NONE

2. Receive report on the other professional services budget line item.

Library Director Janet Bombard clarified the expenditures for the Other professional Services
budget line item.

ORDERS OF BUSINESS

3. Receive a report from Board Treasurer regarding Fiscal Year 2014115 audit and provide direction.

Treasurer Blomgren reported that he found the Fiscal Year 2014115 audit satisfactory for both
the Library Board and Carmel Public Library Foundation's purposes.

4. Receive and discuss oral report on the Group 4 Architects presentation to the City Council.

The Board discussed the report.



5. Provide clarification on requested historical statistical trends report.

Board engaged in discussion as to whether or not it was necessary to undertake such a report.
Board member Godwin volunteered to compile the report.

6. Librarian's Report

a. Library Director Janet Bombard reviewed the monthly statistics with the Board and answered
questions.

b. Bombard gave a recruitment update on the Sunday hours for the 3 library positions.
c. The City Council has awarded a contract for carpeting the Park Branch. The City Council will

award a painting contract at its next meeting.

7. Treasurers Report

Treasurer Blomgren reviewed the financial statements and check register with the Board. There
were no extraordinary expenses that needed special attention from the Board.

Board Member Flower moved to accept the February Financial Statement and Check Register,
seconded by Board Member GODWIN and carried by the following roll call vote:

AYES: BLOMGREN, FLOWER, GODWIN, TWOMEY
NOES: NONE
ABSENT: REIMERS
ABSTAIN: NONE

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

No items discussed.

ADJOURNMENT
There being no further business to come before the Board, President Twomey declared the
meeting adjourned al 10:11 am. The next regular meeting is scheduled for April 26,2O1Z.

Respectfully submitted,
Carolina Lopez, Administrative Assistant

Approved by:

Tara Twomey, President, Library Board of Trustees



CITY OF CARMEL-BY.THE.SEA
Harrison Memorial Library Board of Trustees

Staff Report

April26,2017
Orders

TO: Harrison Memorial Library Board of Trustees

FROM: Janet Bombard, Library Director

SUBJECT: Approve a request from the Carmel Public Library Foundation to hold the Sterling Circle event
at the Main Library if the Park Branch Library is still closed for renovation.

Approve the Carmel Public Library Foundation request to hold the Sterling Circle event at the Main Library if
the Park Branch Library is still closed for renovation.

At its February 22,2017 meeting the Board of Trustees approved a request from the Carmel Public Library
Foundation to hold its annual Sterling Circle event on Sunday, June 11, 2017 at the Park Branch Library.

Should the Park Branch Library still be closed for renovation at that time, the Carmel Public Library Foundation
is requesting approval from the Library Board of Trustees to hold the Sterling Circle event at the Main Library
instead.



#,,,.#
CITY OF CARMEL.BY-THE.SEA

Harrison Memorial Library Board of Trustees
Staff RePort

Apnl 26,2017
Orders

TO: Harrison Memorial Library Board of Trustees

FROM: Janet Bombard, Library Director

SUBJECT: Accept a proposal from the Carmel Public Library Foundation to renovate the Park Branch

Library lobby and make a recommendation to the City Council.

Accept the proposal from the Carmel Public Library Foundation (CPLF) to renovate the Park Branch Library

lobby and recommend to the City Council that it accept CPLF's proposal.

The Carmel Public Library Foundation (CPLF) has set aside monies for an lnnovation Fund to update the

library. As part of this ini{iative, the Carmel Public Library Foundation wishes to renovate the Park Branch

Library lobby. When the project is finished the lobby will become the entrance to the Youth Services

department.

CPLF has received a grant in the amount of $40,000 from the Carmel Rotary Club to help fund the project.

CPLF is working with Group 4 Architects on the project. The proposed renovation will update the library's

services to children and families.

The proposed scope of work consists of the following:
o modifying the display cabinets in the lobby
. modifying and enlarging the current entryway to the Youth Services department
. adding electrical outlets to the lobby
. installing an interactive display wall
. new furniture
. new interior and exterlor signage (any exterior signage will be approved by the City and in compliance

with City sign regulations)

Because this work is being done on a City building, the City Council will have to accept and approve the
project; therefore, staff recommends that the Library Board of Trustees approves the project and makes a

recommendation to the City Council that it accept the renovation of the Park Branch Library.

4



ffi GITY OF CARMEL.BY.THE.SEA
Harrison Memorial Library Board of Trustees

Staff RePort

April26,2017
Orders

Tq Harriion Memorial Library Board of Trustees

FROM: Janet Bombard, Library Director

sUBJEGT: Approve proposed amendments to the Harrison Memorial Library Reference Policy

Approve proposed amendments to the Harrison Memorial Library Reference Policy'

The library,s reference policies are designed to provide guidelines for the delivery of reference services to our

library patrons.

From time to time the policies are reviewed and proposed updates and changes come before the Library Board

for approval.

The reference staff have been asked recenfly by several library patrons to perform "personal interest searches"

that are beyond the scope of services that th-e reference staff ian provide. As an example, a library patron

i"."ntfy requested that ihe reference staff find him/her a new place to live'

Reference staff can act as consultants with regard to this type of question, assisting patrons in developing

research strategies including identifying, seteciing and using appropriate.resources; however, the staff cannot

conduct the actual search due to the time requirei, and the-peisonal and subjective nature of such a search'

The recommended policy wording regarding personal interest searches can be found on page 6 (page 11 in

the agenda packet)'of thL attached poticy. ine proposed additional wording has been highlighted'

1. Proposed amended Harrison Memorial Library Reference Policies



A\tac-l,r,ryta'ft| 7-

Harrison Memorial LibrarY

Reference Policies

lntroduction

Purpose of PolicY Statement

The purpose of this policy is to present written guidelines for the provision of reference service

at the Harrison Memorial Library, in order to ensure a uniform standard of reference service of

the highest possible quality consistent with available resources.

Nature of Reference Service

Reference services are a part of the Library's commitment to serving the community of carmel-

by-the-sea and the surrounding region. The goal of the Library's Reference Department is to

respond to the information needs of the community as accurately and completely as possible'

The staff does this by identifying, through reference and interpersonal skills, each person's real

information need and respondingto it professionally, impartially, courteously, and in a timely

manner.

The Harrison Memorial Library and its staff regard all requests for information as valid. within

the limitations defined in this document, all questions will be given equal consideration and no

question will be considered unanswerable.

Our primary objective is to give as much assistance as is practicable, drawing on the staff and

collection, as well as the expertise of others and the resources of such cooperative library

agencies as MoBAC and the california state Library when necessary.

Statement of Objectives

The primary goals of the Reference Department are:

1. To provide direct personal assistance to persons seeking information.

Z. To provide consistently excellent reference service as indicated by:

a. Making available a professionally trained and competent staff;

b. Answering questions correctly and completely;

c. Giving such service that each library user is satisfied'

3. To develop and maintain an adequate, suitable and up-to-date reference collection,

both in print and online, which meets the need of library users and prospective users.

4. To help patrons with the use of technology and resources available through the library.



A*crc.h **il -L

Types of Service

The Reference Department's function may be described as personalized assistance or guidance

provided to persons in the pursuit of information. lts aim is optimum access to and use of

existing resources within and beyond the library'

The assistance provided may take a variety of forms depending upon the particular needs of the

individual inquirer. Among these are: location of specific facts; reading guidance or selection of

materials to meet a particular interest or need; aid in identifying the best sources of

information for a given purpose; bibliographic verification; instruction in the use of the library

or a particular resource, including library technology and digital resources; development of

bibliographies, indexes and other aids promoting access to information; seeking an answer

from or referralto other agencies or information sources outside the library.

The assistance provided may be done in person, over the telephone, by correspondence, email,

or online.

Reference Desk Service Polices

General Guidelines

The following general rules are to be followed by all members of the reference staff:

o When staffing the reference desk, service to the public takes precedence over any other

activity. Other work or conversations of a personal nature are to be avoided. Personal

phone calls, or telephone calls related to non-desk assignments, are to be kept to a

minimum.

o polite, courteous, friendly service cannot be overemphasized. lf for any reason this is

not possible, it is best to have another staff member cover the desk or assist a "difficult"

patron,

o The reference staff provides verified information. A complete answer includes a citation

to a source. Opinions are kept to oneself. (lf an opinion is requested, clarify the

statement, e.g., "My personal opinion is..." or "This does not reflect the opinion of

Harrison Memorial LibrarY").

o The confidentiality of the origin of questions is respected and discussion with others is

restricted to seeking assistance in finding the desired information.

o Reference staff is to encourage library users to return to the reference desk if they need

or want further assistance.

o All reference questions must be answered or referred to the appropriate library/agency.

An unqualified "No, we do not have that information/material' is not an acceptable

response to a question.

-



4[r.d'trnt-,r) L

Priority of Assistance

Direct personal assistance to library users is given top priority by the reference department'

Supporting activities, although essentialto maintain the quality of those services' takes second

place. (Desk projects are to be promptly stopped when a person is waiting for assistance')

priorities for reference assistance, from highest to lowest are as follows:

l.Personswhoarephysicallypresentinthelibraryareservedonafirst-come'firstserved
basis.

2. TelePhone inquiries'

3. HelP with librarY technologY'

4. Library orientation and bibliographic instruction'

5. Help with using digital resources- e'g' eBooks and eReaders'

6. E-mail/social media inquiries

7. Pending reference inquiries, i.e., inquiries not answered when they were first taken' for

whatever reason.

8. Mail reference

Public Service Awareness

since many people are reluctant to ask for help, it is the reference librarian's responsibility to

anticipate public needs and offer service when it appears needed' (Judgment is necessary here;

some people like to browse and do not want to be interrupted or bothered)'

It is important to keep in mind that people may be new to the library or are not skillful at using

it. Give active assistance.

o Show where materials are. Avoid pointing'

o When possible explain in lay, not library terms'

o Before referring a patron to the online catalog, determine if the patron will need

assistance in using it. Offer as much assistance as needed and possible'

o Provide instruction in use of tools and resources as needed.

o see that no patron is referred more than once. Telephone ahead when possible to

make sure the department/person has the required material/information'

o Follow-up to make sure the patron is getting what he or she needs'

Guidelines for Handling General lnquiries

Reference lnterview. Determine exactly what the patron wants to know before starting the

search. ln many cases the original question is too general and must be refined by additional

questioning of the patron. Restate the question in your own words to encourage the patron to

<?
t"

I



\}\!r.c)r rwP-;d L

supply any additional pertinent information or clarify the original question' Find out the depth

of the information needed aswell asthe patron'stimeframe' Find out if the information needs

to be in print or electronic format. Sometimes students need a mixture'

Reference search. lf necessary up to one hour may ordinarily be spent on a reference

question. The search is to be pursued when there is the opportunity to work on pending

reference inquiries, i.e., when other people are not waiting for assistance' lf the situation

warrants, more time may be spent on a question when time is available'

Assisting More Than one person. oftentimes it is necessary to herp several users concurrently.

During such times the following guidelines are followed:

o lf the telephone rings during a reference or service encounter, excuse yourself from the

patron, respond to the caller by sharing you are helping a patron and ask if he/she

would like to be called back or wait (if you know it will only be a short time)'

o lf a patron appears while you are engaged in a telephone conversation, acknowledge his

or her presence with a nod or hand signal. End the phone conversation as quickly as

you can, if necessary inform the caller you will return his or her call'

o lf you are assisting a person who has a complex question and other persons are waiting,

help the first patron begin his or her searches, assist other waiting patrons, then return

to the first patron. (Note: No person can expect to monopolize a staff member's time'

lf you are busy with one person and others are waiting, acknowledge their presence and

ask them to wait a few moments. Frequently it is helpfulto get the first person started,

then get the second person started, return to the first person, return to the second

person, etc.)

t nterpretive Questions

The reference staff assists people in making use of library resources dealing with medical, legal,

statisticaland other information that, to be useful, frequently requires interpretation of facts as

well as the facts themselves. Due to the danger of giving misleading or incomplete information

in these areas, the staff does not interpret the information found for library users. ln such

circumstances the staff may indicate that they do not have the specialized knowledge to give

positive or absolute answers, and will advise the library users to review the materials

themselves. Referral suggestions may be made if assistance is needed in interpretation'

Examples of these types of questions and guidelines for how they are handled are indicated

below.

q



A4\z;tc'.wlorq*A L

Medical Questions. The reference staff provides assistance in using basic medical reference

sources. Questions that involve advice, interpretation and/or diagnosis cannot be answered'

Legal Questions. Citations from codes can be given and other legal resources may be

suggested. Questions that involve legal advice, recommendations and/or explanations cannot

be answered. People are reminded that only qualified attorneys can give advice and

consultation. when appropriate, people are referred to legal information services'

ldentification and Appraisal of Art, Antiques, Books and collectibles' The reference staff

assists people in locating auction records, price guides, and other sources which indicate the

general value or background information on art objects. For estimations of value or verification

of authenticity, people are referred to reputable appraisal services or experts in the field'

OriginalTranslations. Short phrases may be translated depending upon the resources of the

library's collection and the staff. For longer translations, people will be referred to other

community resources or a translator.

Original Research and Bibtiographies. The reference staff does not do original research or

compile information and bibliographies for people. They do assist library users in beginning

their research by showing them pertinent resources and sharing search strategies' They may

also help locate existing bibliographies and additional resources not available within the library'

Original research would include any of the following in order to answer the question:

Observation, interviewing, compiling statistics, field research, interpretation of data, surveys or

charting trends.

Consumer Evaluations. The reference staff provides published material on consumer products

and/or assists people in finding information. Recommendation andlor value judgments are not

made for any item.

Mathematical Calculations and Formulae. Mathematical computations of any sort are not

undertaken by the reference staff on behalf of library users. lf a formula involves words or

symbols which the reference staff does not understand and cannot readily define, the user will

be advised to seek help from someone with expertise in that subject area'

Genealogical euestions. The reference staff guides people to published sources, within the

library's collection or online, containing documents and biographical information of a

genealogical nature. They do not research an individual's family or locate a particular family

member or ancestor. Sources of genealogical information and/or individuals who may be of

assistance will be recommended when possible.

iD



t\*rnt.i-tr;.*) 4

statistical Questions. The reference staff does search for published statistical information'

however they do not compile extensive statistical information not do they interpret the

statistical information for library users'

patent and Trademark Questions. The reference staff can assist users in locating basic

information about patents and trademarks. peopre needing extensive information or searches

on patents and trademarks are referred to the sunnyvare patent rnformation clearinghouse (or

refer to their website).

Evaluations of Atlases, Dictionaries, Encyclopedias, etc. The reference staff does not

recommend one atlas, dictionary or encyclopedia over another' People are encouraged to refer

to reviewing sources and examine the various sources in the library's collection' ln this way'

theycanascertainwhichsourcewillbestmeettheirneeds.

criticar Anarysis. personar criticar anaryses, interpretations or judgments of the merit of literary

or other works are not done by the reference staff. The staff will assist people in locating

published reviews and analyses, and reader's advisory service is offered'

Homework Assignments. The reference staff assists students in locating the information they

need for their assignments. Emphasis is placed on helping students learn how to use the library

and the available resources, and care is taken to demonstrate that there is almost always

information available that will meet the students' needs. However, the reference staff will not

,,do,, homework for students of any age, and will not pursue a search in which the student does

not activelY ParticiPate.

personal lnterest Searches. social networking, shopping, job searches, housing searches, and

other personal interest websites cannot be accessed by staff for detailed inquiries' ln these

cases, patrons will be given a brief introduction to the resources available so they are able to

conduct their own research. (draft)

Telephone Reference Service

General Guidelines

Questions received by telephone are given the same weight as questions asked by people who

are physically present in the library. All telephone inquiries are answered equally, regardless of

geographic origin.

Ready reference tetephone service involves supplying information that is readily available,

does not require extensive searching, and may be accurately imparted over the telephone'

These inquiries are generally answered during the initialtelephone call. Up to 3 ready

\\



\\ roc'l nv.nPru* I

reference items of information, e.g., addresses, titles, stock market readings' can be given over

the telephone at a time. lf more are given, the patron is to be informed that this is an

exception. (Ready reference is defined as those questions that can be accurately answered in

1-5 minutes.)

call-back telephone service is defined as an inquiry which can be appropriately answered over

the telephone but requires more extensive searching' ln this situation the reference librarian

takesthe caller's name,telephone number, and asks if there is a deadline' lf there is nottime

to work on the inquiry immediately, it is treated as a pending reference inquiry' only short

answers are read over the telephone. short = approximately 50-75 words' lf time allows and

more information is given, the caller is informed that this is an exception'

rnquiries invorving proronged use of indexes, periodicars, bibfiographic or biographical sources

are generally not accepted over the telephone. The caller is asked to come to the library where

the reference staff will guide his or her research'

Public Service Awa reness

when assisting people over the telephone the following guidelines are followed:

o Verify the question. since visual clues are not available, verbal communication must be

clear and concise.

o Do not leave the caller on hold for more than 1-2 minutes. lf an answer has not been

found after 2 minutes, return to the phone to give the caller a progress report. Always

offer the caller the option to be called back'

o Always cite the source. The caller cannot see from which source the answer is being

read.

Telephone Service Limitations

The same limitations noted under "lnterpretive Questions" apply to telephone reference service' ln

addition, telephone reference service is limited to brief facts that require no interpretation or selection'

Before supplying ratings, recommendations, evaluations or statistics, the explanations given in the

sources are read in detail. lf interpretation is required, callers are always encouraged to come to the

library.

It is expected that patrons will make an effort to come to the library to pick up requested information;

however, reference staff may occasionally mail information to patrons who are unable to get to the

library. When you do so, please inform patrons that you are making an exception for them' ln order to

keep costs down, the information should be limited to what will fit in a legal sized envelope with one

first-class stamp. Use the copyright stamp on anything mailed to patrons' lf a patron repeatedly

requests mail service, staff should ascertain whether he or she is physically unable to get to the library'

tL

r



&$e,cJt r'vuvt) L

lfsuchisthecase,referthepatrontotheoutreachLibrarian' 
lftheyareinanotherlibrary'sdistrict'

refer them to their local librarY'

Articles found online or in a database can be emailed to the patron' or faxed to a local number' Use the

copyright stamp on material to be faxed'

Homework Assignments. The reference staff does not "do" homework' simple fact questions can be

answered. More involved questions are responded to with the suggestion that callers come into the

library where they will receive assistance in locating the information they need' ln the latter case' the

staff is to make a quick check to verify that adequate information is avairabre on the requested topic'

Students can be referred to any available online homework help service as well'

Test Questions. The reference staff does not answer test questions' lf they have the feeling they are

being asked a test question, they will ask the caller. lf the caller says yes, he or she is told that it is not

ethical for staff to answer such questions. lf the caller comes into the library the staff will assist the

patron to search for the desired information'

Medical Questions. Brief factual information can be provided' If several unfamiliar terms are

included in the material or it is too lengthy to read over the phone [especially where an

abridgement might lead to misinterpretation), the caller is asked to come into the library'

Legal Questions. Specific citations from codes or extracts from other legal resources can be read if the

information is not too lengthy or complicated. callers requiring legal research are asked to come into

the library.

Art, Antique, and Book Appraisals. callers are asked to come into the library where the reference

staff will show them the available evaluative resources. Upon request, staff will provide brief general

background information on objects.

Original Translations. Short phrases may be translated depending on the resources of the library's

collectionandstaff. lfthestaffisunabletotranslatethephrase,callersarereferredtoother

community resources or a translator.

Original Research and Bibliographies. Callers will be asked to come into the library where the

reference staff will assist them in locating appropriate resources.

Consumer evaluations. The information usually cannot be read over the telephone due to length of

articles and the number of statistics as well as the dangers of the interpretation of symbols' Callers are

asked to come in to review the evaluations. Staff will check to verify the library does have evaluations

available for review. lf staff cites the source, the top three recommendations from a source such as

Consumer Reports may be read over the phone'

IZ



0$<ada urytttq) L

Mathematical calculations and Formulae' Mathematical computations of any sort are not

undertakenbythereferencestaffonbehalfoflibrarypatrons.lfaformulainvolveswordsorsymbols
which the librarian and/or caller cannot understand, the librarian will not go further with the question'

but will ask the caller to come into the library to look at the material'

Digital Resources. lf a patron needs help with using one of our digital resources' provide as much

assistanceaspracticableoverthephone. lfthepatronneedsmorehelp'encouragehimorhertocome

into the library with their digital device and any account numbers they may need (e. g. Apple lD, Amazon

account number).

Requests for Holds on Materials

Telephone requests for reserves on materials are accepted by the reference staff on the condition that

the patron has a Harrison Memorial Library card. For on-hand items, verify that the item is on the shelf

by checking yourself, or calling the branch for a shelf-check'

Ringing Circulation Phone Lines

There will be times at the reference desk when the circulation line rolls over to the reference line' The

circulation desk staff is either busy or away from the desk. Answer it as you would the reference line'

Reference staff can place holds and renew materials and library cards. lf the question involves a

complicated circulation inquiry, inform the patron that the checkout desk is busy but will get to them as

soon as possible, and then let the circ desk know that they have a call' Take a message if the patron

cannot wait.

Outgoing Calls

There are manytimes, in the course of doing reference work, that it is helpful to contact a person or

organization outside of the Monterey area to get the information needed' The LibrarY allows the

reference staff to make long distance telephone calls for these purposes, with the following

understanding:

1. Available library sources have been checked'

z. The inquiry by telephone will be ended if it is necessary to be on hold for an extended period of

time or the call is redirected more than twice'

3. The reference staff may choose not to make long distance calls in the following circumstances:

o A library user suggests or specifically asks us to make a call' ln this case the person may be

requested to make the call.

o The result of a reference search is one or more phone numbers that are relatively certain to

lead to the information needed. The number(s) are given to the patron for him or her to

make the phone call(s), with the understanding that if the referrals do not answer the

question, he or she should get back to us'

\4



Y"r\\ et U^IY\L'a) L

o The question is such that it may not have a "cut and dried" answer' the answer may lead to

additional questions, or the librarian feels that too much interpretation of the question and

its subsequent answer is necessary. ln these cases the patron will be given the numbers so

that he or she can discuss the question first-hand with the informed party'

Mait and Email Reference Service

General Guidelines

rt is the Reference Department,s poricy to respond to arr reference inquiries received by mail or email'

The department head is responsible for deciding what a reasonable amount of time is to be spent on

each letter (generally a maximum of one hour). lnquiries are treated as pending reference inquiries' and

as such, are worked on in chronological order of date received unless a deadline is noted'

The following limitations are placed on all mail reference services:

l.lfitseemsreasonablycertainthattheinquirycanbeansweredbythewriter'slocallibrary'
the writer is advised to contact that library'

2. Extensive searches through unindexed materials such as newspapers and periodicals are not

provided.

3. Preparation of bibliographies is not done'

4. See also "lnterpretive Questions"

Letters or emails containing questions which require answers from a different library department are

routed to that department, which is then responsible for responding to the inquiry.

Reference Desk Service

Lending of Reference Materials

Reference materials may be lent to cardholders if the librarian judges that it is necessary' Materialcan

go out for four hours during open hours, or overnight, and must be returned at opening on the next

open day. Fill out the log at the reference desk for all such loans.

Items Held at the Reference Desk

The reference staff will hold materials that contain the answer to a patron's question at the reference

b

-

10



desk for one week. lf the patron has not picked the information up by then, put the materials away and

file the information, with your initials, in the "Reference Questions Never Picked Up" file'

PhotocoPY Requests

The reference staff does not photocopy materials for library users' when asked to do so' staff will set

aside materials so that the patron may come in and make photocopies himself or herself' lf an

exception is made and a librarian makes a photocopy for someone' that person will be charged the

normal photocoPY fee Per Page'

Printing Answers to Reference Queries

The first five pages that we print for patrons are free. After that, the charge is 20 cents per page' ln

order to reduce wasted paper, if the patron is not at the library, when printing pages that answer a

patron's reference question, print the first page of each article/website only' Print the subsequent

pages when the patron comes in for them'

Reader's Advisory Service

The reference staff will help patrons select popular interest materials using their own knowledge or

various onrine or print finding aids in the ribrary. rf a staff member is not thoroughly familiar with the

area of the inquirer's interest, he or she may consult other staff members'

Verification and Location of Materials

tf a requested item is not available within the Harrison Memorial Library and the library user desires to

locate it, an effort is made to verifi7 and locate the item. lf a patron with a valid library card wishes, an

attempt can be made to borrow the material (see lnterlibrary Loan).

Referrals

ln the event that a question cannot be answered by the staff using the available resources, the question

may be referred to another agency or organization. These referrals will be made based on the

librarian,s knowledge of community services, public and private organizations and associations,

government offices, etc'

Requests for SuPPlies

The reference department does not provide office or stationery supplies for library users' People are

expected to bring their own paper and writing implements, and other supplies. Scratch paper, golf

\U 1,1



S*\rr. )tYr-oav+ L

pencils, scissors, a stapler, tape, and a magnifying glass will be made available upon request' The use of

other library supplies is discouraged'

Printing Policies

printouts from pubric terminars are 20 cents per page for brack and white and 50 cents per page for

color. Patrons must pay for all pages printed out, regardless of whether they want what they printed;

paper and toner cost the library money'

lf a patron asks you to make printouts for him/her because he/she doesn't use a computer (or whatever

reason), the patron pays 20 cents a page for all copies'

K-12 students may print homework reports and assignments for free.

Public Records Act inquiries

send all reference inquiries that apply to city business to the library director' The director will let

reference staff know whether to answer the question, or whether this falls under the guidelines of a

public Records Act Request, and should be referred to city Hall. This includes questions about:

o City art

o CitY council

. City council meetings or agenda items

o Press and media questions about the city

Approved by Library Board of Trustees 10122/74

t?

I

12



o
,)
\

o

\i

Nt
\l

o
Nq
D

(r
o^
t9
N

D
t{
lf
D

f--o
r

O)(o

r
O
ro
$

CO
r
r
lJ)

F
C')

n
h-

\q
t)t

f-
O)
Lo-

to
-

\
D
Y)

o\
f)

{
+-
o
0o

F.

O)
@
O^
N
N

F.-s
f--
c')

@t-
o.l

O
O)r
co
N

,
o

t-o ro
|f)
co

$o
O)s

so
O)rf

rO
oo
\
(.9

t-
$
cq-
O
ro

Oo
o-
rO

(o
N
(Y)

@t-
@_

$

D-rt
e
tr)
(0o

F

,9
.cE

f-
N
\
O
N

t-
co"
c)

N
cY)

rO
N
O)-
cr)
N

eI
CD
tr)

t-
$
c.l
@

LO
N
rr)-
N

O)
$ rJ)

c.t

Nt\
o-
!+
N

({)
N

rt€
co o)$

lo
c.)
rr)

rr)
CO
|f)

No
6

N
O
co-
rr)

cf)
LO
s-

cf)
N

oroc) t4l
$- 6{
-N

!

C
o
E
o
(U
J

(o
N

N

N
$
Lo-

O)or
$t-
$-
N

ro6l
(0

@o
c)-

co
N

cr) @(o
N

o(\
€-

t\
o.
oo

!

c
o

=.9
F

N
Nr
N

Ns
lo^

O)o s
f.-
$-
N

}\!rol
(o

c)-
ce
N

ct) @(o
N

fo(\l
o-

(D
Fo-
€

N rf)
tr)

t*
N(o

f.-
N(o

N
c,6

(o
(o
t--
rr)

co
@
(o-

O)
N

$t)|J)t(ott
-l:

o
6,
{!

o
oq,
(U

L
o
g
o
o.
oF

(I'
I

(v)

I
(Y)

I

N
$

I

I
(9

a(n
I

o
u?
l4l

(\l
o!
€

I

cv)q
€
(v)

t

00q
(Y)

I

(oq
o

t
N

I

oq
o

ol
lt)

rr)q o)q
\t

I

oq
o)

I

toq co
oq
(f)

I

(oq
\f

I

(Y)
oq
(Y)

I
o

I

o
o
o
(E
o
(E

o
(g

o
o Co

.9
LL

Ela
o l.L
qlN
cl()ol(g
z_l>

o
0)p

.o
Ef

J
Fot-
zo
tr
J3
ot
5
FJ
3o

o1

o
o
(E
o
rE

F
o

s
J
o
o
o

o

-

Co
.9
LL

E
oE
.9
LL

I

Coz

a
q)
C.N
(5

(5

o
(.)
E

.9

=

J
FoF
zo
tr
J3
ot
6
lrlJz
UI
L>tfI-

J
FoF
2
o
F
J
3o
il.
6

U'
luot.
foa
UJt

tsIo
t.
UI
I

o

'a;

o
o
(t
o
u,
o
ooot.

oo
o

o
cl
a.

o-
E

m
J

I

o)

=Jm
-oq
(E
L

co
.Y
L(!

o_

L
o
.9.
-
6ooJ

o-
oo
a
o
.9
L

oa
!

J
o

J
FoF
Ea
=zot
F
o-

z
o
F
J3ot
6

UI

x.ot
UJ

o

ac
o.F
$
L

,9,o
ot
C
o
o
o_

to
fo

-)z
C)o
Eo

a
foj
o
c)
-Co

a
f
o
-vo
0)
-co
.o
Co
L

o
0)
o
(U

oF

F
il,o
o-
lUt,
Jr-
--F o,tZ;
Qa>

=6tn(oz'
t.
t,o
=



@
N
cr)

N
@
cf)

o N
lo-
N

Nslo
oo
N

(o
$i.
o)

oo
\
6a

oF
tt
dtJ

o

c)
N

@
N
rf)

€
(Y)q
(9
N

(o
$
@
o

N
cf)
@-
COs

o)
co
\
N

t\
-s.o(l)

(o
(f)

oF
.9
F

co
N.
o
c\l

s
cf)
N

l4)
(0
r+.
o
ht

$
CO
o^
N

rf)o
oo-

os

to
co

(a

Or-
rc)lo

f-
lr)

$
CO
N

N
F-
N

@
$s

f-o
N.
N

f-
Ns N

N
f-
ro
ro-
l-

N
Fq
o

o

=o
t5
J

roo
o.i

@
(f)

({)
tq
N

ro
tr)
o^

f-
N
$"
tt

N
o)
CO

stt\
@-
lo

cf) @
c.)

ca
c!

COt
lo
$
N

ss cr) @
@
l-

ooo-
-

e
o

=,9
F

too
o.i

@
co

(v,
\f
-(\t

rf)
l()
o-

l-
Ni.
$

N
o)
cr)

\fi-
@"
to

co @
(f)

(,)
N

No
F

o(o
N

(o\t o o
@

t\
--

o
o,
(!
-qo
o
ED(!

o
I
o
o-
o

(o
n
N

I

(oq
@
6t

I

oq
ct
c

t

lJ)
o?
o

t\
oq
(\t

I

00
e
(o

t
i-t

FOc
@
l{)

@q
@
N

I

o
oq
@
N

T

o

o:tt

t
F
ni
F

I

N
c!
(\

I

oIo
oq
o
N

I

Nq
€

I

a
E.
ul

=ot.t.
ogl

m
z
o
tr
J
,og,
o

l!oz
IJJo
cn
IIJ
E,
L
o
UJo
J
o-

ooa
Io
I

-oJ
q)

E
L
G
O

J
FoF
.nFz
ulo
o
I.IJt

o
o
O

C
J
o
O
ot-o
o

o
.C

o

#
C
J
o
C)

o
o
Co

Eo
(5
l-
o
o-
Loo
,=
C
f

IJ
t<IF
lo
IF

.lrlt
sl=
o lulolo
.*l@
N IlU
b l0r
_c.lz
6lg

a
IJJo
=t
IJJa
Io
UJtFfo

t
oF
9,
:E
J
ooJ

oo
C
(o
Ec
0)

@
E
(tr
Loot-
o-

a
J
J
o
ulzo
o-
IIJJ
IIJF

YIal
8lI
sl?
zle
@laal+
el-

=18oto)l-r

-va
oo
o
(5
Jot-
()

aJ
J
o
ulz
oI
o-
IIJJ
I'JF
J

FoF

o
op
oo
E

-co
(o
ot-
)
o

U

c(
,a

(
o

It
(
z

a
=a

C
o
(E

fo
.=
O

o
Lo
=a

-x.aoo
oo
C)

o)
o
x.

F
u,
o
o-
ltJt.
Jf-
!FNz_
O cr)

=5!-Ato
z1
t
t.o
-J



D
\.1

\
f

@
@

\ g)
<f
6-
F
rF

oF
o
lll

cf)
ca
N
$

s
l-o
N

ro
@
N

s
l-sf-

(o
(oo
lCI

LO
c.)(o

lr)o
cf)

o
cf)
f-(o

F
N
co
6)

o
cf)
c{

$c)
lo
sr

o

t(o
o,

o
cr)
N

f-N
N os s

cf)

N
$

No o
-N

!F

rf
or.
€o

.9

slo
ro

(o
f-
O)

ro
f-
N

@rs(o
co
N
@t+

co
st
N

(o
N

o)o
N

o)
@
f-
ro

ot6\f
F

L_
Lo
l(0
lo)

(o
t\

(o
N

l- (o lo @
N

@ s o)t\
Eo
E
o
{!
J

o
o)
$

ro
N

O(o o)
(f)
l'-

tfo
l^c}

o N
cf)

c\.1
N o

f-

0

=o

CO
cf)(o

f-(o @
@

lr)
lr)
f-

F
N(o

co O)s o)
N

D
c)
f-

to
D
(t)

oar
$N s @

N
(o s (t)

N

o
CD

G'

o
o
ED
(E

o
(J

og
o

(\I
u?
D-t

I

(f)

\t
I

@
\o

I

(Y)

+
I

(o

-I

t
I
ro€

I

(o
u?
CD

€
n
(9

I

@
N
+

I

(\I
oq
c)
N

I

o
o
:$h

oq
o

N
6l
1()

I

(o

@o
o
cD

r
oo
(E

E
ft,
rEo
o
(!
&

O)
o{
(Y)
6t

I

sf
\
-N

o
o?
lt-

oq
o

o?
lo \r

r+
lo
$
6a

I

a
IJJo
t
l!a
UJoz

ltuItr
lru
I tr-
Iru
Itr

E
o
o

=o

o
o
oo
o
(l,lo

lo
lolr-loIt

lzaoo
oo
Co
o
ot

I

llo
0)o
a
(I)
o

IElola
l-cl#
lllol>

l16llzlloll-llFll(/)I luJll=lloI lrrrvl to

ElrlE
BI? IH
E IEIHi lS t-r

!t3lE

Eo
o

=o

o
o
c,o
o
o
(E

E
o

-vtt)
oo
oo-o
l-
o
ot

lz
@
oo
a
C)o'=
L
o)
(t)
.C
f
o

lzo
G)o
Lo
.2
-

CEoo

lzooo
-o
(E

)o
.=
O

alzl
ol
FI
a1
ul
31o
z
o
F

=uoII
t=
l-r
t<
IF
loIF

IJJoz
FIaa
ooIJ
lo
lzl-
I t-l
llulr

;ltl:lE

tElllEl E

a
-op
aot
(E
oa

Io
-C

I

_o

o
E
L
(u
C)

al
#lCIolEI
al
(I)lt
a
0)

o
C
J
o
O
o
L
o
C
o

I

a
Cop
aot
C)

c)t-
o
C
o

ci-
L
oo
C

t5

laILlo
l=

€ le
L IL(olo
olml-l-
HE
l> lo

la
lE
IUJ

.. loJIJ<lo
5tEFlt
z14olo
I. ITL
l< lo
lE l+t

El3
lul lO
IE IF

f-
O
N

ca
l-ol-
(o

Ft,
o
o-
uJ
tr,

J
-J.
Fz
o
=?z
t,
t,o
J



o c{
ro
c?

lo !t
r+

o O o (,

o

6
(E

cv)
co !t N

f-
@

r
@
c)

N
@
o-

O)

O.
r

o
-(\

oo

CD

N

o)
dt

.f
N

lot\t
(o
ol

(,o

c\l
o) oo l-

$
O t\

oF
,9
r

o
(Y)

O
N

(,
lo

@(o
O)

N
$
(Y)

$
@
o-

(oo
o)

o
Ot
ol-

a) (0
N(\l N

€(o

o

=o
.E
J

$ cf) o
ON

cf)
co

t-N
(oor

g'i,
(9
t\l

ht o€(\l
+ o€ N e':) fo

(v)
lt) o)

o)
N

GO f-
$

O i-t

o
=.9
F

LO N ]r @ O)N f-s t- rl
(.o
t\I

oto lo N
N
N

r io c':t t\t
No o o o o 0

o
c
6
o
og|
(!
I
tr
oo
o
IL
o

co
o!
({)

I

()
4
ro
llc,

*q
(?

o sf
r!
c

I

o
c;

o)q
I

6q
lo

I

6

olt

6
o:tt

o

o:tt

6

6:tt

oq
N

(t)o
o)

I

o

o*t

o

o*

oq
cr)N

\l
0q
N

I

oq
olo

(0q
o
fo

I

o

o
+t

o

o:lt

a
=too
E,q-
o
ul
o
t
tua
Fi3
lo
t>

a
E(!
L
o)
og
0_
o
E
-
o
a

@

E
(E
L
(,)
o
L
o-

Eo
o)oa
(,)
.E
ro
(!
C)t
L
G)

E
E
=a

a
=t(,
o
x.
o-
J
FoF

o
E
(E

U)
o
0-

oo
(E

o

C
o
E

O
Io
E

Lo
a

-o
L

=O
I

(tr'o
o
o_a
(,)

E
(6
0)t
L
q)

E
E
=a

ritioz
oz
tUFF

91z
IIJto
J
o
J

o

itioz
oz
IU

F
fo

Fo

,;oz
oz
IIJFF

=tr
(9
ot
o-
a
J

IFloIF

o
=t
o
oi.
o-
IIJ
F
o
lJ-
lJ.o

uloz
oz
ul
F

=
E,oot
(L
ult-
a
l,Llto
J
F
l9

o
=
t.
oo
x.
o-
J
o
o
oo
LUtr
lo

rlll
o2
oz
ulF
F

=
e.ooto
oo
J-oa
lrJ
d(L
J

ot-

in
o
J
o
t
IJJ

(\t

I

CD

t
o
II
a
=t
oot
o-

IIJoz
oz
lJl
l-F
J
l-o
F

o
=
tr.
o
ot
o-
UI
o

o
o
o
tn

uJloz
oz
ull-F

=Eoox
o-
UI(,
J
oo
oo
J
Fo
F

o

x.
o
od
o-

lo

IIloz
oz
IJIFF

J
Fo
IF

uEI
d
g
C
c
o
z
u
II
t-

'iioz
oz
lJl
FF
J
t-oF

a
ts
9,

oo
Jo

x
a
=.9,

c
ooF
x
a
=,9,

-aE
o)L
E:
-c
IO

IIJ
oz
oz
UJ

F
(!)
z
IIJ
x.o
J
o

Fo
F

IIJoz
oz
IIJ

F
z
]U
ru
F

FoF

l!oz
oz
UJ
FF
J
Fo
IF

r--

o
N

-c.)
-Co
L
(s

Ft.o
o-
lIJt.
J
J.
Fz
o
=(!)
z
e.

t.
m
J



a
UJJF
tr
o

o)
@
N

ros(o
@
lr)

f-
ro
@

()
c!

cf)
l-
co

(f)

l-
s.
co

o
E
UJF
o
F

o)
@
Nr

f-
l-
f-

O)
@

l-
rtr)
@

f-
ro
N

cf)
f-
cf)

c{
$
co.
co

al
o)l
C

=J-o
.C
o
-o
L

To-

IJ
u.ld
oo
a
ulJF
l-

ttr)o
N

(o
@

(o cf,
lr)

calr)
o(o c.)(o

$
ao

=s
@^
cf)(o

$
@-
(9
(o

o
EIt
oo
a
=IJJF

|r)o
N

D
5)

s c.)
1r)

ca
lr)

o(o s
@.f

N
@
o^
O)t

f-(o
O.
o
N

o,
sr

o,(o

o o
F

UJoz
z
ulFz

=ulo
a

o

@

i
Co
E

,9,-
f-

@

-C
g
o
E
,a
.C

f-

@
UIo
=tEIa
J

Iz
Io
tuF

o
lUooJ
F
o
a
Yooo

IJJ
F
o
o
!-
aoz
EJo
I

o)

=)co

L
(o

-o

=C'([

-

-
(E
L
_o

=.Co
C
ot-
m
L
L
(o
o-

riJ
IIJ

a
E
UJF
J
Fot-

o
J
IU

o
uJJF
l-
J
Fo
F

'iio2
z
UJFz

=UJa
a
F
a

.9

.C,o
(u

o)
.9
€
ao
o
oE
(u

a
C
.9
o
o
oo

aoo
(6
-o(o
oo
Eo
=
06

Eo
L
q)

C
o
O

o

C)o
o.ao
0)t
ao
i=

o)
.=
o)
o
(s
(U

O
o
-o(!
E
(o
ot
o
.E
-co
(6

o

E
o)
@
(tr
o

ooc
o
Lo
ot

aoo'=
L
oa
-
=o

=)
!

.9
E
=

oolci

.j
FoF

F
tr,o
o-
IJJ
E,

Jr*
-FF

F crtZ-obEg
AE
2>
st
t.
m
J



O)
O
(o

O)
N
(o-
O)
c{

f-
o^
cf)

l-
O)
\

oo
N
$(o

@
o)q
o)
N

oo
$

@
o)
(o-

l-(o
(o

o
O)
o^
ca

LO
@
$

O)
l-

C\t

=
q

@$(o
o

c.)

cf)
f-s

lr)
f-r

N z
q

lo
n
t(l

o
u?
o

q
co(9

q
ro

I

F

=Fo
Io
v,
IJJa
IzotFo
UJJ
llJ

oo
f
l-
o

o
E
oo
a
G

-o
J

I

:e
E
IL

E
oF
o
=.9,

o
(E
oa
o

o
L

o
o
]U

oo
f
iI

=.9
E
(L

oo
5'
G't
o

og|
(E
o-
.clo

=J
E
I
rts
o
oo3

(E
o
L
o
o-
E
o

=o5
oo
o)
(u
o.
o
o
.o

z

#o
5
L
o
o-
1'
o

=o5
oo
o)
G
o.
o
o
.o
tr

z

=o

o

o)
(,J

o

ctr!J

oq
@
@
N

oq
r
c!

rr)
c\]
()
c\l

oq
f-N

oq
co

ro
\*(0
lt)

$t
(')
to

oot-
CY)

ca
$(o

to{
(v)lt

oF
.9

oq
cf)
f-

oq
(f)o

oq
N

oq
O)
l-

oq
o

oq
I\(o
cr)

o
N

st @
N
@

ln
co
$

(9
(o
(\l
N

tr
o

=o
(E
J

oq
lo
CA

oq
ro
N

oq
$

oq
(o

oq
o

oq
(,o

I o o
f.-(a

s$ t
sf

.s

o

=.9
F

oq
o
cf)

oq
N

oq
s

oq
(o

oq
o

oq
F

ro(o
cf)

oo
(r) c1)ot

o
6'
(E

o
o
CD
r!
c
o()
o
a-
o
F

(e
o?
6)(9

I

@
oq
t

I

@
n
6t
1I)

I

o
oq

c)
I

oq
oo

a

Nq
ro
60

I

(o
a?
(l)
64t

I

(v)t
G|
(v)

I

C')q
o
l()

I

ro
o?
6t
(Y)

I

o)cFsf
I

a
&.
fo
g,
ul
ulFz3
J
o

C
o
(U

Jo
L

C)

L
o
.a
I
(u
oo

oo
C
0)t-
(I)

Ot

a
o)
.9
L
q)
a
(o
.9c
oo

ooo
E
oa
f
o

oJ
FoF

'iioflrz
atro

x
J
l.L
IJJoz
IJJ

oa

;zo
E,

o-
Yo
lJJ

o
lr
J
UJa

L([
s
J
C

'(tr

a
C)
.o

oa
l-
I
f
o

J
l-oF

l-
O
N
o
(f)

_c.o!-
(U

F
tr,
o
o-
lUt.
J
IFz
o
=t!)
z
t.
tr,o
-J


